
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 22, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Meeting 

May 22, 2018, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 18-058: Accepting Board Member David Dodd’s Resignation from
the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board ................................... Page 3 

b. Action Memorandum No. 18-063: Accepting Commission Member Merry Maxwell’s
Resignation from the Planning and Zoning Commission ........................................... Page 5 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. February 13, 2018, Joint City Council and Park, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board

Meeting ............................................................................................................... Page 7 
b. March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting ............................................................................Page 10 
c. May 1, 2018, Special Meeting .................................................................................Page 15  

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from Sister School Student Delegation from the Middle and High School
2. Presentation from Airport Advisory Commission Chair John Lee
3. Presentation of a Proclamation Declaring May 20-26, 2018, as Public Works Week .......... Page 21 

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report ................................................................................................ Page 23 
2. City Clerk’s Report
3. Mayor’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Ordinance No. 18-004: Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting the Distribution

of Single-Use Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags and Amending the City of Palmer Fine Schedule
 ................................................................................................................................ Page 29 

I. ACTION MEMORANDA
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-059: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Utility

Extension Agreement with Maple Springs of Palmer SNF Holdings, LLC. for Water and Sewer Main
Extensions to the Maple Springs of Alaska Palmer Campus, Located West of the Palmer City Limits at
12000 East Palmer-Wasilla Highway ............................................................................ Page 57 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

Page 1 of 108

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 22, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

2. Action Memorandum No. 18-060: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a
Contract for the Construction of the “2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance” Project to Pruhs
Construction Company, LLC in the Amount of $432,810.00, Contingent Upon Receiving a Federal
Aviation Administration Grant; and Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Execute Said Grant
from the Federal Aviation Administration for the Airport Improvement Project ................ Page 91 

3. Action Memorandum No. 18-061: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a
Construction Administration Services Contract Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC in
the Amount of $52,100.00 for the Construction Management Work on the Airport’s 2018 Pavement
Maintenance Project .................................................................................................. Page 97 

4. Action Memorandum No. 18-062: Accepting Council Member Brad Hanson’s Resignation,
Declaring the Seat Vacant, and Directing the City Clerk to Begin the Appointment Process to Fill the
Vacancy Until a Successor is Seated After the October 2, 2018, Regular Election ............. Page 105 

J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

M. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative 2018 Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

June 12 Regular 7 pm 

June 26 Regular 7 pm 
July 10 Regular 6 pm 
July 24 Special 6 pm 2019 Budget Planning Priorities 
July 24 Regular 7 pm 
Aug 14 Regular 7 pm 
Aug 28 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-058 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-058 

 
Subject:  Accepting Board Member David Dodd’s Resignation from the Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Resources Advisory Board 
 
Agenda of: May 22, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 3 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-058 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Palmer Charter Chapter II Section 2.9 requires the City Council to approve resignations by members of 
boards and commissions. 
 
David Dodd has submitted his resignation effective May 1, 2018. 
 
The Clerk’s Office will begin the advertising process to fill the vacancy created by the resignation and will 
forward applications to the Mayor for nomination and to the council for confirmation. 

Page 4 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-063 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-063 

 
Subject:  Accepting Commission Member Merry Maxwell’s Resignation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission 
 
Agenda of: May 22, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 5 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-063 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Palmer Charter Chapter II Section 2.9 requires the City Council to approve resignations by members of 
boards and commissions. 
 
Merry Maxwell has submitted his resignation effective June, 2018. 
 
The Clerk’s Office will begin the advertising process to fill the vacancy created by the resignation and will 
forward applications to the Mayor for nomination and to the council for confirmation. 

Page 6 of 108



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council and  

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board Minutes 
Joint Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special joint meeting of the Palmer City Council and Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory 
Board was held on February 13, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor Richard Best, Deputy Mayor 
Steve Carrington Sabrena Combs 
David Fuller Brad Hanson 
Peter LaFrance 

 
Comprising a quorum of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board, the following were 
present: 
 
 Stephanie Allen, Chair Shannon Connelly, Vice Chair 
 Meggie Aube-Trammell  Jo Ehmann 
 David Dodd Sally Pollen 
 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board Member Wesley Rath was absent and 
excused. 

 
Also in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Michael Gatti, City Attorney  
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor DeVries requested approval of the Agenda. Hearing no objection from the Council and Board 
concerning the agenda, the agenda was approved. 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Douglas Cruthers expressed concern that city parks are becoming deficient and no longer user 
friendly to the entire community. He encouraged the Council to budget and invest in improving the parks.  
Mr. Cruthers also asked when the borough was going to transfer the park to the city. 
 
 

Page 7 of 108



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Committee of the Whole (note: action may be taken by the council following the committee of 

the whole) 
a. Parks Assessment Discussion 
b. Other Matters Related to Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 

 
Main Motion: For City Council to Enter into a Committee of the Whole 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Carrington 
Action: Motion carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
Main Motion: For the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board to Enter 

into a Committee of the Whole 
Moved by: Meggie Aube-Tramell 
Seconded by: Dodd 
Action: Motion carried 
In favor: Allen, Aube-Tramell, Connelly, Ehmann, Dodd, Pollen 
Opposed: None 
Absent: Rath 

  
The City Council and Park, Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board (Board) entered into a 
Committee of the Whole at 6:13 p.m. 
 

a. Parks Assessment Discussion 
 
Items of discussion included the following: 

• Board Chair summarized the goals in the Strategy; 
• Council requested the Board prioritize the goals for funding purposes and provide one or two to 

focus on; 
• Including in an assessment the varied needs of all ages in the community, trail connectivity 

throughout the city, improvements on current dilapidated parks, enhancement to finish the 
arboretum project, and improvements to Amoosement Park; and 

• Creation of a conceptualized purpose for the quad. 
 

b. Other Matters Related to Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources 
 
Chair Allen announced there had been many projects the Board worked on and some completed, which 
include, but were not limited to, the arboretum, bike racks, and a donation policy. Focus for the next 
year will be an adopt a park/trail program and to strengthen relationships with the community and 
community groups to be partners with the city to bring parks and trails in good condition. 
 
The Council and Board exited the Committee of the Whole and reconvened the regular meeting at 6:48 
p.m. 
 
G. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
None 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 108



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 
 

H. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None 
 
I. COUNCIL AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Deputy Mayor Best assured the board members that their efforts were not in vain and park projects are 
being worked on when funding is available; and some projects have been accomplished. He expressed 
his appreciation for all their hard work and stated they are going in the right direction. 
 
Board Member Pollen said she appreciated the participation with development and improvement of city 
parks from service organizations, such as Rotary, Kiwanis, Lions, Mat-Su Health Foundation, Elks, and 
Moose. She stated she is learning a lot as a new member and appreciates being able to serve as a board 
member. 
 
Vice Chair Connelly said she appreciated the Council’s time and willingness to meet in a joint meeting.  
She said she appreciated the feedback and direction. 
 
Chair Allen expressed her appreciation that the Council and Board were able to come together to discuss 
the important issues and looked forward to future discussions. 
 
Mayor DeVries thanked everyone for attending the meeting and for their dedicated service to the city. 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Approved by the City Council on this ______ day of ________, 2018. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk Edna DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
Approved by the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Board this ____ day of _______, 
2018. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Chris Nall, Public Works Director Stephanie Allen, Board Chair 
 

Page 9 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 5 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
March 13, 2018 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on March 13, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Edna DeVries, Mayor Richard Best, Deputy Mayor Steve Carrington 
 Sabrena Combs David Fuller Brad Hanson 
 Peter LaFrance 
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Action Memorandum No. 18-030: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Contract with Greene Garden Services for Seasonal Gardening/Horticultural Services in an Amount 
Not to Exceed $52,000.00 

b. Action Memorandum No. 18-031: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Five-Year Agreement with the State of Alaska to Provide Fire Suppression Response and 
Assistance to the Division of Forestry with Regards to Wildland Firefighting Emergencies 

c. Action Memorandum No. 18-032: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Contract with Statewide Door & Glass for Procurement and Installation of a New Glass Door Front 
Entry Way at the Palmer Library in an Amount Not to Exceed $20,700.00 

d. Action Memorandum No. 18-033: Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase New Self 
Contained Breathing Apparatus and Related Equipment for the Aerial Platform Fire Apparatus in 
an Amount of $33,615.00 from Alaska Safety, Inc. under the Governmental and Proprietary 
Procurements Section of Palmer Municipal Code 3.21.230 

e. Action Memorandum No. 18-034: Accepting Board Member Wesley Rath’s Resignation from 
the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. January 9, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda and Minutes 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 

Page 10 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 5 

 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 

 
1. Presentation of a Proclamation Honoring Education and Sharing Day. 

  
Mayor DeVries presented the proclamation to Rabbi Greenberg. Rabbi Greenberg spoke on the Passover 
Holiday emphasizing education and character building.   

 
2. Presentation from Mat-Su Borough Planning Director Eileen Probasco regarding Borough Municipal 

Code Title 17: Zoning Code Update. 
 

Mrs. Probasco summarized the Planning Commission’s review project on the Mat-Su Borough Municipal Code 
Title 17 and explained the reorganization of current zoning language for ease of use and comprehension. 
 
F. REPORTS 
 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Nathan Wallace highlighted his written report, recommended Council support funding of a 
camera installation and surveillance project, and provided a briefing on a recent Commuter Rail Task Force 
meeting.  
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 
City Clerk Norma Alley highlighted her written report, announced the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Meeting for March 15 had been cancelled, and reported on a recent study conducted by the Center for 
American Progress (CAP) on all 50 state’s elections systems. She noted the State of Alaska received a grade 
of B, which was the highest grade given, for their process and acceptance of electronic ballots. The CAP 
recommended the State no longer accept electronic voting via the website, so the State had suspended this 
method of voting for further research. City Clerk Alley asked for the City Council’s support to prepare an 
ordinance to halt the use of electronic voting for the city of Palmer as well. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor DeVries highlighted her written report and added an update on the Commuter Rail Task Force. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report  
 
None. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Tom Roberts thanked the city for previous paving project and asked consideration be given to installing 
an emergency water stand pipe to the palmer pool during the remodeled. He explained the stand pipe would 
allow pool water to be used by fire trucks in an emergency. 
 
Mr. Kopperrud spoke on snow dumping and removal, presented pictures of roadway obstructions and 
property damage, and asked the City Council for support to explore other removal options and locations. 
  
Mrs. Brooke Heppinstall, Palmer Museum Garden and Art Faire Chair, commented on AM No. 18-038 grant 
application asking the City Council for support for this community event by granting the requested funds. 
 
Mr. Sam Dinges, Palmer Museum Executive Director, added the importance of the Garden and Art Fair to 
the Palmer community and asked for the City Council to support the grant application.  

Page 11 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 5 

 
Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman stated he recently attended a training on the Open Meeting Act. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-035: Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City 

Council’s Statement of Non-Objection to Liquor License #3058, for The Moosehead Saloon, Located 
at 810 S. Colony Way 

 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Action Memorandum No. 18-035 
 
Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman came forward and spoke on liquor licenses process of approval and stated it 
should be done differently. 
 
Hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor DeVries closed the public hearing. 
 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-035 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Best 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

2. Action Memorandum No. 18-036: Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City 
Council’s Statement of Non-Objection to Liquor License #1195, for Iron Horse Liquor, Located at 606 
S. Alaska Street 
 

Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Action Memorandum No. 18-036. Seeing no one came forward 
to speak, and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-036 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-037: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Professional Services Agreement with PND Engineers, Inc. for the Public Safety Building Repair Design 
and Construction Administration in an Amount Not to Exceed $44,852.00 
 

City Manager Nathan Wallace reported the Public Safety Building had structural deterioration, was in need 
of repairs, and approval of AM No. 18-037 would be the first step in procuring funds for needed repairs. 
 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-037 
Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Carrington 
Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 

Page 12 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 5 

2. Action Memorandum No. 18-038: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 
$3,000.00 to the Palmer Museum of History and Art for the Garden and Art Faire to be held on July 
14, 2018 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-038, As Amended 

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
Deputy Mayor Best reminded City Council the grants were intended to spur start-up events; not be a 
significant part of their operating budget. He expressed concern that the amount would utilize 60 percent of 
the current grant budget. 
 
Primary Amendment #1: To Reduce Amount to $1,000.00 

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Hanson 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson 

Opposed: Combs, LaFrance, Carrington 
 
Council Member LaFrance agreed with Deputy Mayor Best, but requested the amount be amended to 
$2,000.00 to match the previous amount given. 
 
Primary Amendment #2: To Award $2,000.00 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Combs 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Carrington, Combs, Fuller, LaFrance 

Opposed: Best, Hanson, DeVries 
 
J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 

 
City Clerk Norma Alley reported the map from the City Manager’s Report and pictures of snow dumping from 
Mr. Kopperrud’s public comments were Items Placed on the Table. 
 
K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None 
 
L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Combs requested Mr. Kopperrud’s concerns be addressed as soon as possible. 
 
Council Member Hanson thanked Mr. Kopperrud, requested staff assist in the issue immediately, and thanked 
Mr. Roberts for his forward thinking.  
 
Council Member Carrington thanked Mr. Roberts for coming to share information about the use of stand 
pipes for emergency situations.  
 
Council Member LaFrance invited everyone to attend the Crazy Lazy Run on April 3, 2018, and thanked Mr. 
Kopperrud for coming to talk about snow removal concerns. 

Page 13 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: March 13, 2018, Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 5 

 
Mayor DeVries directed the City Manager to speak with the borough about snow removal issues on Mr. 
Kopperrud’s behalf. 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor  
 

Page 14 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 1, 2018, Special Meeting Page 1 of 5 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
May 1, 2018 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on May 1, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor Richard Best, Deputy Mayor 
Steve Carrington Sabrena Combs 
David Fuller Brad Hanson 
Peter LaFrance 

 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
1. Introduction to Ordinance No. 18-004: Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.09 

Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags and Amending the 
City of Palmer Fine Schedule 

2. Action Memorandum No. 18-054: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Change Order No. 
2 with Roger Hickel Contracting, Inc., to Install a 3’ Stainless-Steel Spool Piece in the ALP Lines 
as Part of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Plan Update, in the Amount of $15,476.00 

3. Action Memorandum No. 18-055: Accepting Commission Member Douglas Cruthers’ 
Resignation from the Planning and Zoning Commission 

4. Action Memorandum No. 18-056: Approving the Cancellation of the May 8, 2018, Regular 
Council Meeting 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
1. December 5, 2017, Special Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda and Minutes 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Fuller 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
  

Page 15 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 1, 2018, Special Meeting Page 2 of 5 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 

1. Presentation of a Proclamation Declaring May 2018 as Bike Month  
2. Presentation of a Proclamation Declaring April 30, 2018, as Olympian Day 
3. Presentation of a Proclamation Declaring May 2018 as Older Americans Month 
4. Presentation of a Proclamation Declaring May 19, 2018, as National Kids to Parks Day 

 
Ms. Roxy Mayberry MTA Board Secretary presented a capital credits check to the city of Palmer in the amount 
of $3,450.69. 
 
City Clerk Norma Alley administered new Parks Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Board Member 
Denise Christopher’s Oath of Office. 
 
Mayor DeVries read and presented proclamations recognizing May as Bike Month, April 30 as Olympian day, 
May as Older American Month, and May 19 as National Kids to Parks Day. 
 
F. REPORTS 
 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Nathan Wallace reported: 

• Projects were on schedule; 
• Met with property owners near arboretum to discuss a future of sign, access on property, and trees 

on private property; 
• Attended Alaska Trials Board conference to learn how to procure trail grant funds; and 
• Announced Palmer Clean Up Days began May 7, with the Chamber picnic on Saturday, May 12, after 

the clean up event. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 

None. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor DeVries announced she will be attending the BP Teachers of Excellence Reception, car show at the 
MTA Event Center, and Palmer High School’s graduation. Mayor DeVries encouraged everyone to participate 
in Palmer Clean Up Days and announced the resignation of Parks Recreation Cultural Resource Advisory 
Board Member David Dodd. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report 
 

None. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Ms. Kenda Huling spoke on possibilities of commuter rail for the valley and requested City Council consider 
train options for Palmer. 
 
Ms. Carol Montgomery spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 18-004. 
 
Mr. Joe Schlanger asked the City Council to consider a different option, rather than taxation, for plastic bag 
legislation and encouraged all to recycle more. 
 
  

Page 16 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 1, 2018, Special Meeting Page 3 of 5 

H. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. Ordinance No. 18-003: Amending the Palmer Municipal Code Title 18 Pertaining to Absentee 

Voting by Electronic Transmission 
 

City Clerk Norma Alley summarized the written staff report, stated electronic transmissions pose risk of 
security breaches, and recommended support of Ordinance No. 18-003. 
 
Deputy Mayor Best asked if there were other voting options. City Clerk Alley answered vote by mail was still 
an option. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 18-003. Seeing no one come forward to speak 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
 

Main Motion: To Adopt Ordinance No. 18-003 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
2. Resolution No. 18-013: Accepting and Appropriating the 2018 Volunteer Fire Assistance Grant 

from the State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources, Division of Forestry in the Amount of 
$7,500.00 for the Purchase of Wildland Fire Personal Protective Clothing and Wildland Firefighting 
Equipment 

 
City Manager Nathan Wallace reported this grant is specifically for forestry gear and approval of Resolution 
No. 18-013 allows funds to be appropriated. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 18-013. Seeing no one come forward to speak 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 18-013 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDA 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 18-057: Approving an Exception to the City of Palmer Charter Section 

2.3 Allowing Council Member Hanson to be Eligible for Employment for Which a Salary is Paid by the 
City Prior to One Year Elapsing Following His Term 
 

Council Member Hanson recused himself and left the Council Chambers. 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-057 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Fuller 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, Combs, DeVries, Fuller, Hanson, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

Page 17 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 1, 2018, Special Meeting Page 4 of 5 

 
Council Member Hanson returned to the dais. 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Information Memorandum No. 18-001: Updating the Council on the Governor’s Commuter Rail 
Advisory Task Force 

 
Council Member LaFrance commented an alternative option needs to be addressed for transportation in the 
Mat-Su valley. 
 
Council Member Fuller recommended a smaller scale pilot program, such as Anchorage to Eagle River or 
Birchwood, be implemented to save money. 
 
Council Member Carrington agreed money could be saved and used better elsewhere.  
 
Deputy Mayor Best inquired why the Palmer City Council was commenting on the Commuter Rail Task Force 
if Palmer is not included in the pilot program.  
 
City Manager Nathan Wallace explained Palmer’s input was important because if the pilot is successful Palmer 
would be included in an expanded final program. 
 
Main Motion: To Stop Funding and End the Commuter Rail Task Force 
Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: Best 
Action: Motion Failed 
In favor: Best, Fuller 
Opposed: Combs, DeVries, Hanson, LaFrance, Carrington 

 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Norma Alley reported a commuter rail survey under the Mayor’s Report and Ms. Carol 
Montgomery’s written public testimony regarding plastic bags were Items Placed on the Table. 
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Ms. Kenda Huling commented she hoped City Council would consider bringing the train back to the city of 
Palmer. 
 
M. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Combs announced she is looking forward to the public hearing regarding the plastic bag 
legislation and thanked the Mayor for accepting the invitation to throw out the first pitch at the Little League 
opening ceremony on May 5. 
 
Council Member Fuller commented he wished the public turnout would continue and wished Council Member 
Hanson well with his new job. 

 
Council Member Carrington declared a plastic bag solution was on his mind and wished Council Member 
Hanson well in his new endeavors. 
 
Council Member LaFrance stated he was grateful for bike month being recognized by a proclamation and 
encouraged Mr. Joe Schlanger to tour the local recycling center. 

Page 18 of 108



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 1, 2018, Special Meeting Page 5 of 5 

 
Deputy Mayor Best affirmed Council Member Hanson’s dedication to Palmer and a job well done.  
 
Council Member Hanson stated his resignation from City Council and submitted his written resignation to the 
City Clerk. 
 
Mayor DeVries encouraged City Council to attend the Little League’s opening ceremonies and thanked Council 
Member Hanson for 20 years of service on the City Council and six years on the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 19 of 108



Page 20 of 108



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

PROCLAIMING PUBLIC WORKS WEEK MAY 20-26, 2018 
 
 
WHEREAS, public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our citizen's everyday 
lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the efficient operation of public 
works systems and programs such as water, sewers, streets and grounds, public buildings, and solid waste 
collection; and 
 
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and comfort of this community greatly depends on these facilities and services; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their planning, design, and construction, 
are vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works officials. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, 
do hereby recognize May 20-26, 2018, as Palmer Public Works Week, and encourage residents to acquaint 
themselves with the issues involved in providing and maintaining our infrastructure and to recognize the 
contributions which our public works department make every day to our health, safety, comfort, and quality 
of life in Palmer. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the seal of the City of Palmer to be affixed 
on this 22nd day of May, 2018.   
 
    
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
       Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

Page 21 of 108



Page 22 of 108



 

Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
May 22, 2018 

 
Staff Update and analysis (April 2018): 

Police Department: 

Total calls: 736 up from 632 in March 

Call breakdown - 39%(March – 29%) traffic/vehicle related, 26%(March - 26%) checks (welfare/property), 
15%(March - 19%) citizen assistance, 20%(March - 25%) other.   

  Fire Department: Calls: (49 - March) in April 2018, up 2% from last month, down by 6% from last year 
 Fire: (9 - March), Rescue: (21 - March), Hazard: (1 - March), Good intents: (9 - March), False alarm: (8 – March),     
 Special Incident: (0 - March), Service call: (1 - March), Overpressure/explosion/overheat:  
 (0 – March), (March - 19) citizen assistance, (March - 25) other.   

Page 23 of 108



 

Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
May 22, 2018 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 108



 

Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
May 22, 2018 

 
 

 

Community Development: 

 

 

Library:    

Patrons:                   March           April 

Total Registered Patrons                 13,716          13,753  

Total Mat-Su Borough Resident Patrons                10,583        10,609 
Total City of Palmer Resident Patrons                  3,133          3,144 
New Library Users                   37   
     
 
Usage:                    March            April 
Patron Visits/Count                   9,631           8,232 
Reference Questions                                 1,905          1,735 
Library Computer Sessions                  2,172          2,166 
WIFI Sessions                                              1,448          1,310 
Circulation (PPL items)                                                 10,894          9,507 
Magazine circulation                  1,068             250 
Take Home Paperbacks                          213                          271 
   
 
Programs:               
 
Children’s Programs             41      Events        1,346   Participants           33  Events              961  Participants        
Class Visits                3      Events             84   Participants             3  Events                 81  Participants 
Young Adult Programs               6      Events             84   Participants             5  Events    30  Participants 
Adult Programs                17     Events            94   Participants           11  Events    94  Participants 
Total Library Programs             67     Events         1,761  Participants                    52  Events            1,166  Participants 
 
Community Events              57     Events    153  Participants          44  Events                148  Participants    
Total Events                 124     Events 1,761 Participants          96  Events            1,314  Participants 
       
 
 
Building and Compliance: 

Compliance Letters dispatched: 0(0 -March) (unsightly premise), 1(0 -March) (clean up follow up),  
and 12 (14 -March) (permit follow ups), other: 2(3 -March) 

Page 25 of 108



 

Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
May 22, 2018 

 
 

Page 26 of 108



 

Report to Council 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 
May 22, 2018 

 
 

 

    Golf Course: 
 

                                                  April  2018    April 2017  

       Operational Days:        13                   18 

       Number of Rounds:           507      1,409  

       Green Fees:   52,257.00             59,679.00 

       Cart Rental:      5,483.00                     8,397.00 

       Club Rental:   270.00                 110.00 

       Driving Range:        574.00                     2911.00 

       Merchandise Sales:    14,113.50               20,493.50 

       Snack Bar:                        720.50                            3,817.00 

       Beer & Wine:             529.50     2,461.50        

    

 

 
 

Page 27 of 108



Page 28 of 108



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-004 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 18-004 

 
Subject:  Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use 
Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags and Amending the City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
 
Agenda of: May 1, 2018 - Introduction 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ___________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
  

Originator Information: 

Originator: Council Members Pete LaFrance and Sabrena Combs 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature: 
 
 

Page 29 of 108



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-004 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 18-004 
 Public Testimony 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Plastic, single-use, disposable shopping bags are a problem in the City of Palmer.  Their prevalence as 
litter is often noted during the annual city clean up, and at any given time they can be seen tangled in 
trees, bushes and fences around town.  Additionally, they pose a real danger to both terrestrial and 
aquatic wildlife and have been found in the digestive tracts of many local animals.  Plastic bag bans in 
other regions have been shown to reduce plastic bag litter by 72% and are known to effectively help 
protect wildlife and pets.  It is therefore in the best interest of the city to restrict the free distribution of 
disposable shopping bags thinner than .4 mils within the city limits.  Further, a fine schedule is 
recommended for the distribution of single-use disposable plastic shopping bags thinner than .4 mils. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 18-004 Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting the Distribution of 
Single-Use Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags. 
 
 

Page 30 of 108



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-004 Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Ordinance No. 18-004 

 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 8.09 
Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags and 
Amending the City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
 

WHEREAS, the use of single-use carry-out disposable plastic shopping bags in the city of 
palmer (“city”) creates a burden on the environment, endangers wildlife, and has been shown to 
be harmful to bodies of water and problematic for solid waste management; and 

 
WHEREAS, to decrease the number of littered disposable plastic shopping bags in the city, 

it is necessary to restrict general use; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of all residents to 

restrict the use of single-use disposable plastic shopping bags; and 
 
WHEREAS, plastic carryout bags do not biodegrade, create problematic environmental 

issues, and frequently escape from trash containers and landfills creating a burden on residents 
and the City for clean-up. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows (new language is 
underlined and deleted language is stricken): 

 
Chapter 8.09.010 Definitions  
 
Any word, term, or phrase not defined in this section shall have its ordinary and common meaning. 
The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section:  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Committee of the Whole: February 27, 2018 

Introduced by: Council Members LaFrance 
and Combs 

Date: May 1, 2018 
Public Hearing:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 31 of 108



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-004 Page 2 of 3 

 
“Affected establishment” means any retail or commercial business facility located inside the city 
of Palmer that sells goods or prepared food directly to consumers including but not limited to 
grocery stores, pharmacies, retail stores, and restaurants. 
 
“Single-use plastic disposable shopping bag” means a bag made from plastic or any material not 
marked or labeled as “biodegradable” or “compostable” that is neither intended nor suitable for 
continuous reuse and that is less than 4 mils thick, designed to carry customer purchases from 
the seller’s premises. 
 
Chapter 8.09.020 Purpose  
 
The purpose of this chapter is to reduce the generation of waste from single-use plastic disposable 
shopping bags. 
 
Chapter 8.09.030 Single-use plastic disposable shopping bag prohibited 
 
A.  No affected retail establishment may provide to any customer a single-use plastic disposable 
shopping bag for the purpose of carrying away goods from the point of sale. 
 
B.  No person may distribute single-use plastic disposable shopping bags at any city facility or 
any event held on city property. 
 
Chapter 8.09.040 Exceptions 
 
Exceptions to the prohibition are bags used by customers inside stores:  
 
A.  To package bulk items such as fruit, vegetables, nuts, grains, candy or small hardware items 
such as nails and bolts; and 
 
B.  Bags used to contain dampness or leaks from items such as frozen foods, meat, or fish, flowers 
or potted plants; and 
 
C.  Bags used to protect prepared foods or bakery goods; and 
 
D. Bags provided by pharmacists to contain prescription drugs; and 
 
E. newspaper, laundry or dry-cleaning bags; and  
 
F.  Bags sold for consumer use, off the seller’s premises, for such purposes as the collection and 
disposal of garbage, pet waste, or yard waste. 
 
Chapter 8.09.050 Fines 
 
A Violation of this chapter is an offense punishable by the fine established in the current, adopted 
budget.  
 
  

Page 32 of 108



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-004 Page 3 of 3 

Section 4.  Amendment of city of Palmer Fine Schedule is hereby amended to add a fine 
schedule for the distribution of single-use plastic disposable shopping bags, as follows: 

 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 8 Health & Safety 

Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Disposable Plastic 
Shopping Bags  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: 

Fine: Fine Citation: 

Single-use 
plastic 
disposable 
shopping bag 
prohibited 

8.09.030 First Offence: Warning  
Second Offence: $100.00 
Third Offence: $300.00 

8.09.050 

 
Section 5. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 18-004 shall take effect January 1, 2019.  

 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2018.  
 
 

 
_________________________ 

 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 33 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Alex Papasavas <contact@turkeyredak.com>
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2018 1:31 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Letter for Tuesday Meeting
Attachments: Plastic Bags.doc

Hello Norma, 
Attached is a letter to the City Council regarding the meeting tomorrow, Tuesday night. I am not able to attend and ask 
that the letter be read in my absence.  

Please contact me with any questions or clarifications if necessary.  

Thank you, 
Alex Papasavas, Owner/Manager 
Turkey Red 
(907) 355‐3242

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 34 of 108



550 S. Alaska ST, STE 100 
Palmer, AK 99645 

Turkeyredak@gmail.com 
(907)746-5544 

 

City of Palmer Clerk 
nalley@palmerak.org 
 
 
February 24, 18 
 
 
To the Palmer City Counsel, 
 
Thank you for this discussion on finding an alternative to single use plastic bags. As the  
Owner/Manager of Turkey Red, I am confident in our Palmer community and the Palmer 
City counsel to put our heads together to develop a plan that is affordable, has minimum 
impact on our precious environment and minimum impact especially to those that are 
currently poverty stricken. As a business owner, looking at the true cost of decisions and 
actions is imperative in preventing costlier fixes in the future. This is where we are with 
this issue. Single use bags are cheap & light in weight for easier shipping, but the true 
cost of their existence is not calculated into the equation. When the cost of damage to 
wildlife alone is added, that right there makes them too costly. Extending landfills are 
crazy costly also, so reducing waste saves money. Other cities, states and countries are 
finding solutions to this problem. Over 15 years ago, London, England made available 
large reusable heavy-duty plastic weave bags in grocery stores for .50 pence for the 
lifetime of the bag. If the bag wore out, then the customer could exchange it for a new 
one at no cost. The first year, less than 10% of customers were using them. Within 5 
years, over 90% of customers were using them. The financially advantaged and 
disadvantaged were both using them. 
 
Reusable cloth bags made from hemp or bamboo is the best option. However, any 
reusable bag to start the process would be welcomed. We have chosen to use paper bags 
at our restaurant as well as paper straws. Although paper is also single use, paper bags 
can be recycled, will break down sooner than plastic and will not harm wildlife if eaten as 
much as plastic. Reusable bags are a better solution. Reusable cloth bags are the best 
option. 
 
We would be more than happy to donate, contribute funds etc, for a bulk buy of reusable 
bags between the City of Palmer and other local businesses. The City of Palmer can have 
their logo on one side and the businesses can have their logos on the other. I am willing 
to donate time & money to help this necessary positive change in our community.  
 
As with any new good habit, it takes conscious thought to do it enough to make it so it 
becomes automatic behavior. We are a diverse and clever community, so developing a 
habit of using reusable bags is indeed very achievable. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
Alex Papasavas 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 35 of 108

mailto:Turkeyredak@gmail.com


1

Norma Alley

From: Brooke Heppinstall <brooke@mtaonline.net>
Sent: Sunday, February 25, 2018 2:42 PM
To: Norma Alley
Cc: 'Brooke Heppinstall'
Subject: plastic bag ban hearing/atten: City clerk
Attachments: Remember the aggravation over the switch from paper bags to plastic.docx

Importance: High

Hi , 
 
I'd like to weigh in on the bag ban issue, but, I'm leaving for Juneau tomorrow.  I asked a local City Council member how 
to do this and she said to send  this attachment to you to be read aloud at the hearing Tuesday night. 
 
Thank you! 
 
Brooke G Heppinstall Kroenung 
Palmer, AK 
 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 36 of 108



Brooke Heppinstall/ Palmer AK 

Remember the aggravation over the switch from paper bags to plastic?  Save the forests so we can hang 
these plastic ones from the trees during the next wind storm! Plastic is a marvelous, too perfect 
invention. Eventually, it winds up in the food chain, clogs the oceans and storm drains, and makes a 
general mess.  Plastics, in general, are a major and growing source of refuse.  Paper bags can be equally 
bad for the overall environment.  So, what we're really talking about is changing behavior from 
unthinking behavior to a thought process that focuses more attention:  Where are my reusable bags?   

Reusing stuff is a popular trend when it comes to up-cycled furniture and vintage objects, remaking 
thrift shop clothing, and showing off our crafty skills.  Some entrepreneurs collect stuff to sell to these 
re-users.  If we can change our point of view to value this behavior when it comes to interior design and 
wearables, perhaps we can do so with our shopping bags.   

Personally, I can carry up to 42 pounds in one of my reusable totes.  It's easier on my shoulder, doesn't 
break, and fits into my pocket.  Friends can have fun making reusable totes. Towns could have a contest 
for best local design on a town tote. Businesses could host parties to make reusable totes or put their 
own logo on a reusable 'gift' tote. Your logo lasts longer on a reusable tote. Gifting totes is good for 
those in need as well.  

Change itself is change resistant.  It's tough enough to change our behavior to get off the couch and 
exercise, but, we can do it.  We can learn to remember to bring our reusable totes as well.   

Brooke Heppinstall 

 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 37 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Debby <debbb@gci.net>
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 4:42 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Support for plastic bag ban.

Dear Madam Clerk, 
I am writing in support of the single use plastic bag ban proposal for tonight's meeting. I’ve lived in the Palmer 
area for 20 years. I purchase 95% of my groceries and goods in Palmer stores. I always bring my own sturdy 
reusable bags when I shop. I have been a board member, education committee member, and volunteer for 
the Valley Community Recycling Solutions for 20 years. I look forward to a community that is not choked by 
plastic bag debris every time the wind blows. Please include my comments in the record for tonight’s meeting. 
Thank you, 
Debby Broneske 
17750 E. Idle Drive, Palmer 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 38 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Joanie Kirk <joaniekirk@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 1:10 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Clerk 2.27.18 council mtg re Plastic Bag discussion

 

Thank you for the opportunity to address the council.  
 
  My name is Joanie Kirk, I am a naturopathic doctor in private practice in downtown Palmer. I am writing to voice my 
support for plastic bag ban legislation in the City of Palmer.  
 
The health of an environment, a community and its occupants can be assessed in  many ways. Water and air quality, 
health of the wildlife, plant life and human population are indicators of overall well‐being or dis‐ease.   
 
There is enough evidence that plastic bags cause problems in wildlife, both on land and in water. It 's enough that we 
harm ourselves with plastics, but the effects of human made petroleum products are literally leaking into and damaging 
our environment and its occupants.The health issues related to humans exposed to plastics, products of the 
petrochemical industry is alarming and I am afraid we will see worsening problems in the future.  
 

Banning plastic bags  is a step we can take locally to address a more pervasive issue of  'what to do 
with all of our stuff' in our petroleum dependent culture. 
 

Thank you.  
 
 
 
Joanie Kirk, ND 
 
907‐707‐3604 (c) 
www.joaniekirknd.com    
joaniekirk@gmail.com    
 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 39 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Rose C Smith <akrcviergutz@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 3:44 PM
To: Norma Alley
Cc: Carol Montgomery
Subject: Plastic bags

Since I am not able to attend this evening, I did want to add “my 2 cents”. 
A revision on the strength of the bags, as well as the fee charge, I think will make people more responsible for their 
proper use and recycling of. 
Thank you. 
Rose C Smith 
Wasilla, Alaska 
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

Items Placed on the Table 
Meeting Date : 02-27-2018 

Agenda Item : Audience Participation 
Descripton : Plastic Bag Legislation 

Page 40 of 108



P
age 41 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Lj Messenger <ljsadventure@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 8:23 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: I support the plastic bag ban

Hello 
My name is lj messenger. I am a homeowner here in Palmer. I love our town.  
I am in full support of the plastic bag ban. Sorry I was unable to make the meeting tonight.  
Thanks 
Lj  
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 42 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Russ Johanson <russjohanson@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 28, 2018 8:17 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Please ban plastic bags

Dear Ms. Alley, 
 
My wife and I recently purchased land in Palmer and hope to move from Wasilla in the near future,  We always viewed Palmer 
as more community-driven, and more forward-thinking, than our current town; I am surprised Palmer hasn't already banned 
plastic bags!  
 
I own land near the dump, and I frequently utilize our wonderful trail network in the area.  The damage done by plastic blags 
blowing from the dump is truly breathtaking, and not in the way that Alaskan scenery should be breathtaking.  There are cheap, 
convenient, environmentally-friendly alternatives to plastic bags - reusable bags.  The ubiquitous plastic bags are quite frankly a 
non-value-added item.  Because they damage the landscape, provide no benefit, and are easily replaced with a superior 
alternative, I support banning plastic bags.  I hope you will too. 
 
Thank you, 
Russ Johanson MD 
Vice President, Mat-Su Emergency Physicians 
 

Page 43 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: thomas buckley <fwhitney315@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2018 6:44 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Support limiting bags

I don’t think I will make to the meeting tonight, but I fully support controlling the wasteful amount of plastic bags used in 
Palmer.  Palmer is a beautiful community, but the amount of plastic bags I see in the spring is so disheartening.  To an 
extent it’s a littering problem, but in the valley I’ve seen countless winds blow bags out of flatbeds, garbage cans, 
shopping carts etc.  They end up everywhere.  Please put political jargon aside and make a decision that will boost 
personal responsibility and community pride.  I love Palmer. Please help take care of it.   
 
Respectfully, 
Thomas Buckley  
Palmer city resident  

Page 44 of 108



 

550 S. Alaska St., Suite 101, PO Box 45, Palmer, AK 99645 
Tel: (907) 745-2880 Fax: (907) 746-4164 

www.palmerchamber.org  info@palmerchamber.org 

RALPH RENZI – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR * AILIS VANN – PRESIDENT, Midnight Sun Yoga Center * CASSI CAMPBELL, MEA 
KELLY LARSON, Alaska State Fair * CHAD BOSTICK, MVFCU * DEE WILLIAMS, MTA * STEVE SOLARI, Meier Lake Event Center 

GORDON FLETCHER, Humdingers Gourmet Pizza Co. * ANNE THOMAS, Body in Balance Physical Therapy  
LUCAS PARKER, Kuchar Construction * CHRIS CHAPPEL, Northern Industrial Training * JUSTIN SAUNDERS, Mat-Su CVB 

 

 

 

March 19, 2018 

 

City of Palmer 

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 

Palmer, AK 99645 

Re:  Letter of Support – Eliminating the Distribution of Single Use Plastic Bags 

Dear Mayor DeVries and City Council Members, 

Tourism is a vital industry in our town and many of our members profit from the annual influx of tourists 

that come to see our agriculture, animals and beautiful scenery.  Many of our restaurants, retail stores 

and lodging industries depend on these visitors to balance their bottom line. 

It is important to keep our city as clean and beautiful as possible so that it mirrors the photos visitors see 

on the internet and in travel brochures.  One only needs to look at the fences, ditches and trees to know 

that there is a problem with the lightweight flyaway bags that often pollute our city. 

The Greater Palmer Chamber of Commerce believes it is in our members’ best interest to pass 

legislation to eliminate the distribution of single-use plastic bags.  We support an ordinance to achieve 

this measure. 

The Greater Palmer Chamber of Commerce thanks you for your efforts to beautify our wonderful city. 

Respectfully, 

 

 

Ailis Vann, President 

Greater Palmer Chamber of Commerce 

 

 

Page 45 of 108



Page 46 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Harvey Bowers <bowers654@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 25, 2018 9:11 AM
To: City Clerk
Subject: Plastic Bags comments

 
 
We live just east of Seward Meridian Road.  We have had several businesses and properties here for many decades. 
 
My wife and I support trying to eliminate or greatly reduce the proliferation of single use plastic bags in Palmer.   
 
We have experienced loss due to ingestion of windblown plastic bags by our reindeer.  We have had a  40 year  battle 
with picking up windblown bags on our property.   
 
Harvey also had cancer a number of times and almost died.  Researchers have linked  micro plastic ingestion to cancer.  
Plastic breaks down 5 mm or less and is ultimately ingested in food and water.  Harvey's  cancer was fairly rare but there 
are over a dozen cases in Mat‐Su with a likely environmental trigger. The long term health  associated with using plastic 
is only being 
tested by its long term use.    
 
Using plastic for only a few minutes  seems foolish.   Plastic bags may not 
only be a nuisance but a long term public health and safety issue.  Anything the City of Palmer can do to reduce the 
impact of single use plastic bags would be appreciated. 
 
Thank you for consideration. 
 
Harvey & Sandy Bowers 
305 S. Bartlett Circle, Wasilla, AK 99654 
email: harvey@agateinn.com 
 
 

Page 47 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Carol Montgomery <anclm4@mtaonline.net>
Sent: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 11:06 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Plastic bag legislation

To: Norma Alley, Palmer City Clerk  
 
From: Carol Montgomery, Mat‐Su Zero Waste Coalition Plastic Bag Committee 
 
Re: Plastic Bag Ordinance  
 
Dear Ms. Alley, 
 
The following is a brief history and timeline of events surrounding the movement to ban plastic bags in Alaska. I thought 
it would be helpful to provide some context and some history of this issue for Members of the City Council.  
 

History and Timeline of Movement to Ban Plastic Bags in Mat‐Su 

In the fall of 2016, third graders on a field trip to VCRS told staff that they had witnessed Dr. Collins at the Matanuska 
Experiment Farm remove wads of plastic from his caribou.  

Dr. Collins confirmed local ruminants were eating plastic bags. He had 2 caribou deaths. Williams Reindeer Farm 
confirmed they had lost reindeer due to plastic bags for years. Now they patrol fields daily to grab bags before the 
reindeer eat them. Agate Inn confirmed 2 reindeer deaths from plastic bag obstruction. 

October, 2016, Mat‐Su Zero Waste Coalition decided to form a Plastic Bag Committee [PBC] to explore this problem and 
to raise awareness about these hazards. We did research and found alarming hazards to marine life and learned about 
microplastics in salmon (see reference below*). We found necropsy confirmed deaths of other local animals and AK 
wildlife. We made video of local caribou/reindeer eating plastic. 

October, 2016, Cordova bans plastic bags 

In November, 2016, PBC surveyed shoppers at Carrs Palmer and Wasilla Walmart.  Out of 266 respondents, 162 (61%) 
said they favored either a ban or fee to regulate single use plastic shopping bags. 

August, 2017 KTUU Channel 2 news interviewed Dr. Collins at Matanuska Experiment Farm about moose eating plastic 
bags. Plastic bags can cause obstruction and death in moose if they eat enough of it. 

Throughout 2017 PBC went to Community Councils and spoke to Rotary, Kiwanis, Chamber of Commerce and many 
other local groups. We found strong support and local groups contributed over $3,000. Money was used to purchase 
radio ads to make people aware of hazards. PBC purchased and distributed reusable bags to over 2,000 shoppers at 
grocery stores in Wasilla. 

August, 2017 Assembly member Barb Doty sponsored legislation through Mat‐Su Borough assembly. However, the only 
legal option for Borough was an excise tax on single use disposable plastic shopping bags [SUDPSB]. 

Public turnout at Assembly showed strong support for reducing bags, but strong anti‐tax feeling. 

Page 48 of 108



2

Mayor Cottle opposed the excise tax, but agreed SUDPB were a problem, so he proposed to ban the bags in Wasilla. 

Borough Assembly decided to wait and see what Wasilla would do. 

January 2018, Wasilla City Council voted 5:1 to ban SUDSB. Written testimony was 47:1 in favor and public comments 
were 2:1 in favor. 

KTVA Ch 11 reported on Wasilla ordinance and conducted a poll asking viewers whether Anchorage should ban plastic 
bags. 75% were in favor.  

2018 Kodiak and Soldotna both passed bans on SUDPSB 

In 2018 AK legislative session, HB 264, a ban on SUDPSB passed two House committees but didn’t get enough support to 
go to the House floor. Public testimony during hearings was overwhelmingly in favor of the ban. 

April, 2018, Pete LaFrance introduces ordinance to Palmer CC to ban SUDPSB 

 

References for further information about the hazards of plastic: 

Plastic trash in the ocean: https://scienceworld.scholastic.com/issues/2016‐17/041717/an‐ocean‐of‐plastic.html 
https://serc.carleton.edu/NAGTWorkshops/health/case_studies/plastics.html 
 
Plastic in fish: 
*https://www.researchgate.net/publication/278041328_Ingestion_of_Microplastics_by_Zooplankton_in_the_Northeas
t_Pacific_Ocean 
 https://www.theguardian.com/lifeandstyle/2016/aug/31/fish‐plastic‐pollution‐ocean‐environment‐seafood 
 
Plastic effects on human health:https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2967230/ 
 https://www.news‐medical.net/news/20100320/Impact 
 

  

Page 49 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Sarah Keith Kehoe <skkehoe@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2018 5:20 AM
To: Norma Alley
Cc: WACBABs
Subject: In favor of plastic bag ban

 
Dear Palmer city council,  
 
I am fully in favor of the plastic bag ban. Plastic bags are strewn across the landscape and are ugly. Plastic bags are 
causing harm to animals and to our reputation as a state. I hope you will all vote wholeheartedly in favor of this ban. We 
Alaskans can do better and have no need for it. We can learn to do better and will. Please help us in this regard and rise 
us all up in doing the right thing.  
 
Thank you for your service,  
 
Sarah Kehoe  
Physician Assistant 
P O box 765 
Talkeetna 
AK 99676 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Page 50 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Sabrena Combs
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 5:10 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Fwd: Ordinance 18-0004 

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Regin Dervaes <regin.dervaes@gmail.com> 
Date: May 16, 2018 at 12:54:35 PM AKDT 
Cc: edevries@Palmerak.org, rbest@Palmerak.org, scarrington@Palmerak.org, scombs@Palmerak.org, 
dfuller@Palmerak.org, plafrance@Palmerak.org 
Subject: Ordinance 18‐0004  

Thank you for taking the time to address this issue within our community. I am a proponent for banning 

one time plastic bags in the greater Palmer area.  

Plastic bags may be convenient during our shopping trips, but they are doing more harm than good. 

According to National Geographic, we use more than 500 billion plastic bags every year and, because 

the bags are so easily discarded, many are swept into rivers or drains and end up in the ocean. This 

makes plastic bags among the top 12 items of debris found along coastlines.  

And once the bags are there, they do not go away for a very long time. Plastic bags are made of a type of 

plastic called polyethylene. Because polyethylene is not biodegradable without special treatment, items 

made of it rapidly accumulate in borough dumps and garbage patches in the ocean and can take more 

than 300 years to decompose. 

We need to vote to approve ordinance 18‐0004 to ensure that the planet is protected from the harmful 

effects of plastic bags. With Ordinance 18‐0004 we can make sure we do not introduce more bags into 

the landfills, rivers and oceans.  

 

 

Thank you,  

Regin Dervaes  

Page 51 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Sabrena Combs
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 5:10 PM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Fwd: I SUPPORT Ordinance 18-0004

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Megan Fritts <megan.l.fritts@gmail.com> 
Date: May 16, 2018 at 5:00:17 PM AKDT 
To: "edevries@Palmerak.org" <edevries@palmerak.org> 
Subject: I SUPPORT Ordinance 18‐0004 

Dear City Council, 
 
Please pass ordinance 18‐0004 and help prevent unnecessary single use plastic bag pollution. 
 
Please see article from the USDA site and know that your choice WILL make a difference. 
 
 
https://reader.elsevier.com/reader/sd/6449CE17D11CBFC31EEE195C0623CF1FC0B5D38104AAA9B20E8
E80869C7E007AAA0660F11212F5875BDF97CC67AD94C0 
 
I am low income and find it extremely easy to use my 5 oversized $0.58 reusable bags from Walmart 
once a week when shopping for my family.  It’s actually easier because you have less to deal with when 
you unload.   
 
Your decision is leading the way for change and it’s what the residents want.  
 
Thank you for your time! 
 
Megan Fritts  
Palmer, AK 

 

Page 52 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Norma Alley
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 9:17 AM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: FW: Palmer Plastic Bay Ordinance

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Doug Hill <apprendre@gci.net> 
Date: May 16, 2018 at 5:26:35 PM AKDT 
To: <scombs@palmerak.org> 
Subject: Palmer Plastic Bay Ordinance 

Plastic in the food chain, plastic in tap water, fish and wildlife eating plastic …  
 

Plastic Fibers Are Found in 83% of the World's Tap Water, a New Study Reveals (Time 
Magazine): http://time.com/4928759/plastic‐fiber‐tap‐water‐study/ 
Your Table Salt Is Likely Sprinkled With Microplastics, Research Reveals (Forbes 
Magazine): //www.forbes.com/forbes/welcome/?toURL=https://www.forbes.com/sites/trevornace/2017/09/14/table‐salt‐

contains‐carcinogenic‐plastic‐study/&refURL=https://www.google.com/&referrer=https://www.google.com/ 
 
I have personally picked up hundreds of plastic grocery bags from roadsides, forest, 
wetlands, lakes, rivers, …After the bags have been exposed to I don’t know how many 
days of UV rays they shatter like glass into small pieces.  Micro plastics are a major issue 
facing humanity.  Fish eat the micro‐plastics as they would plankton or insects. 
 
What possible downside can there be to taking this one little step of banning plastic grocery 
bags?  In my mind there is no sane reason to not ban them. 
 
Recycling is not an answer to the problem.  Many humans are still littering.  Many 
people do not secure loads of trash in the back of their trucks.  There is no reason for 
the trash that we see accumulating along, for example, the Glenn Highway in the Palmer 
Hay Flats where I have picked up many plastic grocery bags. 
 
Please vote to ban plastic bags in Palmer. 

 
   I am sending this to all member of the Palmer City Council. 

 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Doug Hil 
437 S Gulkana Street 
Palmer, Alaska 

Page 53 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Edna DeVries
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 8:07 AM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Fwd: Support for Palmer Plastic Bag Ordinance

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Patricia Fisher <psfisher@gci.net> 
Date: May 16, 2018 at 9:33:12 PM AKDT 
To: <edevries@palmerak.org> 
Subject: Support for Palmer Plastic Bag Ordinance 

Dear Mayor,  please consider a positive vote on the Plastic Bag ordinance.  It is time to 
recognize that these bags are a hazard to our environment.  And there are simple alternatives 
to using plastic bags. 

Keep an open mind and please consider that we must begin changing our habits which are so 
detrimental to the environment. 

 

Patti Fisher 

Page 54 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Edna DeVries
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 8:09 AM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Fwd: Palmer Plastic Bag Ordinance

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: karen johnson <ksjohnson4911@gmail.com> 
Date: May 16, 2018 at 5:14:27 PM AKDT 
To: dfuller@palmerak.org, scarrington@palmerak.org, rbest@palmerak.org,  edevries@palmerak.org 
Subject: Palmer Plastic Bag Ordinance 

Dear Council Members:   I am sending this message to 
encourage you to carefully consider the Palmer Plastic Bag 
Ordinace and cast a vote to implement the ordinance = a 
ban on single use plastic bags.   

This spring I have spent 6 hours pulling plastic (bags, 
tubs, containers & lids, and pet food bags) out of the 
brush at the back of my small yard.  The trash 
accumulation is frustrating, especially when I think about 
how much of it would be eliminated if the community was 
not using light weight "grocery" bags.   

I fully support a ban on plastic bags used at retail 
stores.  It won't take long for folks to get used to bringing 
their own reusable bags on their shopping outings.   

Sincerely, 
Karen S. Johnson, Palmer resident since 1952 
 

Page 55 of 108



1

Norma Alley

From: Edna DeVries
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 9:12 AM
To: Norma Alley
Subject: Fwd: Please support bag ban

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Judy and Mark Masteller <markjudy@mtaonline.net> 
Date: May 17, 2018 at 8:46:07 AM AKDT 
To: <rbest@palmerak.org>, <dfuller@palmerak.org>, <edevries@palmerak.org>, 
<scarrington@palmerak.org> 
Subject: Please support bag ban 

Hello Palmer City Council members, 
While we don’t live within the city of Palmer, we live just outside (and prefer to shop in Palmer).  We 
strongly support the proposed plastic bag ban, and hope you support it as well.  Please do the right thing 
and follow Wasilla’s lead – so we can spend our grocery money in Palmer!  Thanks, 
Mark and Judy Masteller 
 
641 S. Lower Rd 
Palmer 

Page 56 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-059 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-059 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Utility Extension Agreement with 
Maple Springs of Palmer SNF Holdings, LLC. for Water and Sewer Main Extensions to the Maple Springs 
of Alaska Palmer Campus, Located West of the Palmer City Limits at 12000 East Palmer-Wasilla Highway  
 
Agenda of: May 22, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
√  Finance   05/03/2018 
  Fire    
  Police     
√  Public Works    05/03/2018 

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 15,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
√ Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 15,000.00 
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 02-00-00-2215 Utility Extension Deposit 
√ Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 57 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-059 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Utility Extension Agreement 
 Location info/map 
 Project Drawings 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Maple Springs of Palmer is requesting approval of a Utility Extension Agreement to extend City water and 
sewer main service to their proposed Maple Springs of Alaska Palmer Campus in accordance with 2018 
City of Palmer Standard Specifications. The developer’s engineer, Richard Besse, PE, RLS, of Besse 
Engineering & Surveying has provided a certified cost estimate of $357,260.70. 
 
 Construction of 1,580 lineal feet of 8” DIP water main and facilities $177,352.00 
 
 Construction of 1,423 lineal feet of 8” DIP sewer main and facilities     $120,266.00 
 
 Consultant engineering fees and other related costs    $44,642.70 
 
 Estimated City warranty period cost      $15,000.00 
           $357,260.70 
 
There is no proposed oversizing cost related to this project.  
 
Upon finalization and signing of the Utility Extension Agreement, the developer will provide the project 
cost deposit required in Section 2.03. 
 
Maple Springs of Alaska Palmer Campus is located outside the current City limits but is within the City’s 
utility service area. Approval of this Utility Extension Agreement will allow the developer to build a senior 
housing complex and develop 6 additional lots for commercial purposes (typically medical related 
facilities). 
 
Prior to final execution of this Utility Extension Agreement, the developer will provide the performance 
guarantee as required under Section 2.08 of the Agreement. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-059 allowing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a Utility 
Extension Agreement with Maple Springs of Palmer SNF Holdings, LLC. 

Page 58 of 108



Page 59 of 108



Page 60 of 108



Page 61 of 108



Page 62 of 108



Page 63 of 108



Page 64 of 108



Page 65 of 108



Page 66 of 108



Page 67 of 108



Page 68 of 108



Page 69 of 108



Page 70 of 108



Page 71 of 108



Page 72 of 108



Page 73 of 108



Page 74 of 108



Page 75 of 108



Page 76 of 108



Page 77 of 108



Page 78 of 108



Page 79 of 108



Page 80 of 108



Page 81 of 108



Page 82 of 108



P
age 83 of 108



P
age 84 of 108



P
age 85 of 108



P
age 86 of 108



P
age 87 of 108



P
age 88 of 108



P
age 89 of 108



P
age 90 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-060 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-060 

 
Subject: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Contract for the Construction of the 
“2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance” Project to Pruhs Construction Company, LLC in the Amount of 
$432,810.00, Contingent Upon Receiving a Federal Aviation Administration Grant; and Authorizing the 
City Manager to Accept and Execute Said Grant from the Federal Aviation Administration for the Airport 
Improvement Project    
 
Agenda of: May 22, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 432,810.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 432,810.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 30-03-10-7129 & 30-30-10-6230 Matching Funds 
X Not budgeted  Anticipated FAA Grant $518,625.00 
 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 91 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-060 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Notice of Intent to Award 
 Bid No. 18-01PAQ Summary Tabulations 
 CIP 2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance 
 Project Overview Map 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
This airport project was one of several presented to City Council at the January 23rd meeting for upcoming 
airport improvements in 2018.  There were 2 bids received for this project, Pruhs Construction Company, 
LLC, was the lowest responsive responsible bid in the amount of $432,810.00, on an Engineering Estimate 
from HDL of $453,100.00.  At the same time frame as this project, Pruhs Construction Company, LLC will 
also be completing similar work on Runway 10/28 making for less overall coordination of general 
contractors and their sub-contractors.  
 
For the 2017 budget year, the City Council approved matching capital improvement funding of $225K to 
be used for the Rehabilitation & Repaving of Runway 16/34.  This project came in considerably lower than 
estimated, therefor the City has remaining funds from this original match which will be used to match the 
anticipated FAA Grant of $518,625.00 or (93.75%) with the COP match at $34,575.00 for an estimated 
total project of $553,200.00.  All of the FAA grant paperwork has been submitted with the anticipation of 
funding to follow soon.   
 
Project Funds will be used for the following improvements on Taxiways A, C, D, E, F, G, H, J, and L: 

• Crack Repairs 
• Crack Sealing 
• Asphalt Surface Treatment (AST) 
• New Pavement Markings 

 
At completion of this project and last year’s project, the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport 
will continue to be the most versatile airport, supporting more diverse aeronautical operations than any 
other airport in the Mat-Su Borough. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-060 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Contract with Pruhs Construction Company, LLC for the 2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance Project 
Contingent upon Receiving a Federal Aviation Administration Grant; and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Accept and Execute a Grant from the Federal Aviation Administration for the Project when offered. 
 

Page 92 of 108



Page 93 of 108



Page 94 of 108



CITY OF PALMER
2018 Pavement Maintenance

CIP Cost Breakdown

Page 1 of 1

Construction Bid Design CA Services City Admin Total
Pavement Maintenance 432,810.00$      46,569.00$    52,100.00$        21,640.50$    553,200.00$      

-$                    
-$                    
-$                    
-$                    
-$                    
-$                    
-$                    
-$                    

432,810.00$      46,569.00$    52,100.00$        21,640.50$    553,200.00$      

City Administration (5%) 21,640.50$        

Local share 34,575.00$        
State share -$                    

FAA share at 93.75% 518,625.00$      

553,200.00$      

P
age 95 of 108



P
age 96 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-061 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-061 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Construction Administration Services 
Contract Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC in the Amount of $52,100.00 for the 
Construction Management Work on the Airport’s 2018 Pavement Maintenance Project    
 
Agenda of: May 22, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 52,100.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 52,100.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 30-03-10-7129 & 30-30-10-6230 City Matching Funds 
X Not budgeted  Anticipated FAA Grant $518,625.00 
 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 97 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-061 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 HDL Proposal for the Construction Administration Services for the 2018 Pavement Maintenance 

Project 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
This engineering contract work will fund the construction administration (management) portion for the 
2018 Pavement Maintenance Project that involves Taxiway A, C, D, E, F, G, H, L, and J.  The project will 
provide for crack repairs, crack sealing, new AST treatment and fresh pavement markings (paint).  Overall 
costs savings on this CA Services contract were negotiated and achieved due to the overlapping CA 
Services for the completion of work from last year and HDL sharing staff and vehicles between the two 
projects.   
 
This airport project was one of several presented to City Council at the January 23rd meeting for upcoming 
airport improvements in 2018.  The funding will come from an unused portion of last year’s CIP match of 
$225,000.00 that went unused due to the lower bid numbers received on the previous FAA AIP Grant.  All 
of the FAA grant paperwork has been submitted with the anticipation of funding to follow soon. The 
monies spent on the design work should be reimbursed at 93.75% once the City receives the anticipated 
FAA AIP grant expected in late May or early June to fund the project.  CIP matching funds will be derived 
from the design portion reimbursement by the FAA with the actual 2018 Pavement Maintenance Grant. 
 
Expeditious design work allowed for early spring bidding as well as an award to Pruhs Construction 
Company, LLC who will be on the airport to complete work from last year’s project on runway 10/28 which 
involves similar work as outlined above.    
    
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-061 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Administration Services Contract addendum for the 2018 Pavement Maintenance Project in the Amount 
of $52,100.00. 

Page 98 of 108



 
 

Anchorage       3335 Arctic Boulevard, Suite 100, Anchorage 99503  907.564.2120 
Mat-Su  202 West Elmwood Avenue, Palmer 99645  907.746.5230 

Kenai Peninsula   10735 Spur Highway, Suite 1B, Kenai 99611  907.283.2051 
 

CIVIL 
ENGINEERING 

GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING 

TRANSPORTATION 
ENGINEERING 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES 

PLANNING 

SURVEYING 
& MAPPING 

CONSTRUCTION 
ADMINISTRATION 

MATERIAL 
TESTING 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 
SERVICES 

May 3, 2018 

Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
Chris Nall, Public Works Director 
City of Palmer 
231 W. Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, Alaska 99645 

RE: Amendment Proposal for CA Services - REVISED 
2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance 
Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport 

Gentlemen: 

HDL Engineering Consultants (HDL) is pleased to present this amendment proposal for 
construction administration, inspection, and testing (CA) services for the 2018 Taxiway 
Pavement Maintenance project at the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport.   

SCOPE OF WORK 

CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION, INSPECTION, & TESTING SERVICES 

HDL will work closely with the City to provide CA services in accordance with FAA 
requirements, including construction monitoring, coordination, administration, inspection, 
testing, and record drawings.  We anticipate the work will occur in 2018 during a 4-week 
construction performance period.  As the apparent low-bidder for construction is the same 
contractor as for the Runway 16/34 Rehabilitation project and several of the work elements 
are similar, we anticipate the contractor will perform the work concurrently.  Therefore, we 
anticipate sharing staff between projects. 

HDL will coordinate and monitor the day-to-day activities of the project on behalf of the City.  
David Lundin, P.E. will be the Project Manager.  He will have overall responsibility and will 
coordinate and supervise staff, monitor schedule and budget, and provide quality control 
review of deliverables. Erik Jordt, E.I.T. will be the Project Engineer and primary point of 
contact for construction and Tae Voight, E.I.T will be the Office Engineer.  Erik will keep the 
City informed of progress, field directives, and changes as they arise and will prepare weekly 
written status reports.  Tae will assist Erik with office tasks; Erik and Tae will share inspection 
duties.   

Construction Start-up.  HDL will conduct a pre-construction conference and will review 
material and equipment submittals, shop drawings, samples, and quality control submittals.   

Project Administration.  HDL will review administrative submittals, schedules, and contract 
closeout submittals.  We will prepare a Construction Management Program in accordance 
with FAA requirements.  HDL will conduct formal weekly construction meetings and will 
frequently meet informally with the Contractor and City to assist in coordinating the work.  We 
will review and respond to Design Clarification/Variation Requests (DCVR) from the 
contractor.  We will assist the City with change order negotiations for additional or 

Page 99 of 108



RE:  Amendment Proposal – 2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance-REVISED 
May 3, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

unanticipated work and secure FAA approval before authorizing change order items on grant-
eligible work.  We will assist the City with FAA coordination.  We will review pay requests, 
verify quantities, and make recommendations for payment to the City for payment.  We will 
issue and cancel NOTAMs, as authorized by the Airport Superintendent.   

Construction Inspection & Quality Assurance Testing.  We anticipate the majority of the 
fieldwork will occur during a three-week period, during which HDL will provide up to full-time 
construction inspection.  We anticipate the Inspector will be shared for at least one of these 
weeks with the Runway 16/34 project.  We will also provide periodic inspection for an 
additional two weeks during final completion of the work.   

Our Inspectors will observe, test, and document the construction on behalf of the City.  We 
anticipate providing up to 60 hours per week of inspection; actual hours will depend upon the 
Contractor’s schedule, the type of work being performed, and the level of documentation 
required.  Documentation will include photographs and daily reports detailing the equipment, 
labor, inspections, testing, and activities occurring each day.  We will provide copies of daily 
reports on a weekly basis, if requested.  HDL will also conduct formal substantial and final 
completion inspections jointly with the City and prepare a substantial completion inspection 
report and list of deficient items.   

HDL will provide quality assurance material testing to ensure the adequacy of the contractor’s 
quality control by performing testing at approximately one-half of the contractor’s quality 
control frequency detailed in the Quality Control Sampling and Testing Requirements chart 
included in the project manual. 

Closeout.  For construction closeout, HDL will review the contractor’s construction markups 
and will prepare electronic record drawings.  We will submit record drawings to the City and 
FAA on Mylar and in Adobe PDF format.  We will request a release of liens and claims 
statement from the contractor and will distribute a project completion and acceptance 
certificate for execution.  For grant closeout, HDL will provide a bound Project Closeout Report 
for the FAA grant in accordance with FAA requirements.   

COST PROPOSAL 

We propose to provide the aforementioned services for a cost not to exceed $52,100 on a 
time and expenses basis using our published hourly labor rates and receiving reimbursement 
for project expenses at cost plus 10%.  See the attached worksheet for a detailed breakdown 
of the budget estimate. 

The level of effort required for construction phase services is highly dependent on the 
cooperation and skill of the contractor; the methods and equipment the contractor employs; 
the weather; the amount of rejected workmanship that must be retested; and the schedule he 
decides to work.  None of these conditions is within the control of the Engineer.  We have 
prepared this estimate taking an optimistic view of potential difficulties based on our current 
understanding of the project and have not included budget for claim negotiation, protracted 
disputes, repeated retesting, or if the contractor’s work extends beyond the contract 
construction period.  Our CA Services fee is a budget level estimate based on the above-
discussed services and schedule.  Anything to the contrary may result in additional cost to our 
work. 
  

Page 100 of 108



RE:  Amendment Proposal – 2018 Taxiway Pavement Maintenance-REVISED 
May 3, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue working with the City on this project.  If you have 
any questions, you can contact me at 746-5230. 

Sincerely, 

HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC 

David Lundin, PE 
Principal Civil Engineer 

attach: Cost Estimate Worksheet, 2 pages (dated 5-3-18) 

 
 

H:\jobs\18-001 Palmer Airport Term (COP)\00 term contract\Fee Proposals\Pavement Maintenance\Amend for CA\PAQ TPM 
CA amend 050318 rev1.docx 

Page 101 of 108



FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: DATE: 5/3/2018

Engineering Services for 2018 Pavement Maintenance

TASK
TASK 
No.

LABOR       
(or FP)

INDIRECT 
COST

EXPENSES TOTAL COST
FIRM'S TOTAL 

PRICE
*SUB-

CONTRACTS
PRICE PLUS 

SUBS

CA Services 2.6 $46,750 $0 $5,350 $52,100 $52,100 $0 $52,100

ESTIMATED TOTALS
LABOR       
(or FP)

INDIRECT 
COST

EXPENSES TOTAL COST FEE
FIRM'S TOTAL 

PRICE
*SUB-

CONTRACTS
PRICE PLUS 

SUBS

FOR FIRM: $46,750 $0 $5,350 $52,100 $0 $52,100 $0 $52,100

TIME AND EXPENSES

*Subcontractors for negotiated professional or technical services, products, etc.  (Commodity items available to the general public at
market prices, equipment use, and unit priced items are generally included in estimate as expenses.)

PAQ TPM CA fee 050318 rev1.xlsx estimate.sum Amd 1(10/96)  DOT/PF, Tasks Estimate Summary 5/3/2018   10:02 AM
Page 102 of 108



COST ESTIMATE PER TASK

FIRM: HDL Engineering Consultants PROJECT TITLE: Engineering Services for 2018 Pavement Maintenance

TASK NO: 2.6   TASK DESCRIPTION: CA Services DATE: 5/3/2018

GROUP: METHOD OF PAYMENT: FP FPPE T&E CPFF PREPARED BY: David Lundin

SUB- LABOR HOURS PER JOB CLASSIFICATION
TASK NO. SUB-TASK DESCRIPTION Contract/ 

Proj Mgr

Aviation 
Engineer

Project/ 
Office Engr

Project/Off 
Engr OT

Inspector Inspector OT Admin. Asst

4 4

2 4 2

4 4 16

12 48 4

8 8 132 50

4 16 32

2 4 12

4 24 2

TOTAL LABOR HOURS 40 12 112 0 178 50 10

$175.00 $125.00 $105.00 $140.00 $105.00 $140.00 $80.00
LABOR COSTS ($) $7,000.00 $1,500.00 $11,760.00 $0.00 $18,690.00 $7,000.00 $800.00

EXPENSES

SUB-TASK 
NO.

ITEM(S) QTY UNIT PRICE
TOTAL 
PRICE

1 $500.00 $500.00

$0.00

Markup at 10% $50.00

14 $30.00 $420.00

Laboratory Testing (allowance) 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

36 $80.00 $2,880.00 FIRM'S TOTAL COST OF LABOR (or Fixed Price):
IF CPFF , TOTAL INDIRECT COST @ 0.00%

TOTAL EXPENSES: $5,350 FIRM'S TOTAL EXPENSES

SUB-CONTRACTORS:  Firm Initials and Price Per Task FIRM'S TOTAL COST (no Subcontracts or Fee)

FIRM: Subtotal 10% Markup TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES:

AMOUNT: $0 $0 TOTAL COST + SUBCONTRACTOR PRICES:

* Labor Rates shall be direct labor (base pay) only if Method of Payment is CPFF; otherwise, Labor Rates shall be total rates (i.e. base pay + benefits + overhead + profit.)

Project Administration, Construction Inspection, Quality Assurance Testing (3-Weeks)

Construction Start-up
Management

Pre-Construction Meeting

Contractor Submittals

Project Administration

Field Inspection & Testing

Closeout 
Construction completion

Record Drawings

Grant Closeout Report

* LABOR RATES ($/HR) 

Miscellaneous small items

Nuclear Densometer (day rate)

$52,100

$46,750

$0

$5,350

$52,100

$0

Vehicle (day rate)

COMMENTS: Assumes -
- Project/Office Engineer 16 hours/week for three weeks.
- Inspector works one 10-hour shift per day, six days each week for three weeks, one of which

is shared equally with the Runway 16/34 project.
- Inspector works two additional weeks of periodic inspections during closeout.
- Three weekly progress meetings.

PAQ TPM CA fee 050318 rev1.xlsx Task2.6_CA (10/96)  DOT/PF, Task Estimate Sheets 5/3/2018   10:02 AM

P
age 103 of 108



Page 104 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-062 Page 1 of 3 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 18-062 

Subject:  Accepting Council Member Brad Hanson’s Resignation, Declaring the Seat Vacant Effective May 
23, and Directing the City Clerk to Begin the Appointment Process to Fill the Vacancy Until a Successor is 
Seated After the October 2, 2018, Regular Election 

Agenda of: May 22, 2018 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Norma Alley, City Clerk 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 250.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 250.00 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 105 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-062 Page 2 of 3 

Attachment(s):  
 Possible Supplemental or Interview Questions 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
On May 1, 2018, the City Council approved AM No. 18-057 allowing for an exception to the city of Palmer 
Charter Section 2.3 allowing Council Member Brad Hanson to be eligible for employment for which a salary 
is paid by the city prior to one year elapsing following his term.   
 
Council Member Brad Hanson was elected to the Palmer City Council in October, 1998, after serving six 
years on Palmer’s Planning and Zoning Commission.  Council Member Hanson submitted his resignation 
effective May 1, 2018. This resignation creates a vacancy on the City Council for a seat expiring October, 
2020. 
 
Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.065 states once the position is declared vacant, upon acceptance of the 
resignation, the City Clerk is to publish public notice of the vacancy, accept applications for 14 days after 
the first publication, and then the Council is to fill the vacancy by appointment. 
 
The first publication will be on May 25 with the deadline to submit applications on Friday, June 8, at 4:30 
p.m.  The City Clerk’s Office will vet the applications ensuring they are qualified to serve on the Council.  
The applications will be furnished to the City Council for review at the June 13 City Council Meeting.  The 
applicant appointed will serve from time of receiving Oath of Office until the candidate elected at the 
October 2, 2018, Regular Election assumes office to serve the remainder of the term. 
 
The appointment process outlined below is consistent with the Palmer Municipal Code and best practices: 
 
Advertisement and Application Period: 

• The City Clerk will begin advertisement with the first publication on May 25 in The Frontiersman. 
• Applications will be accepted at time of declaration of vacancy to 4:30 p.m. on Friday, June 8.  All 

applications must be received by the City Clerk’s Office no later than the deadline.  If mailed, the 
postmark on the envelope will not be considered as a valid date for meeting the deadline. 

• Interested persons shall file a completed application.  If it is the wish of the Council, the applicant 
may also be required to submit a letter of intent (did this with 2003 appointment) and/or 
supplemental questions. 

 
Interview Questions:  

• The Council will need to finalize interview questions.  The last time a Council position was filled by 
appointment (2003), the Council asked two questions.  The questions were: 

o What is your vision of Palmer? 
o What do you see as priorities for the Council this coming year? 

• Who will ask the questions?  
 
Interviews: 

• The Council can determine if interviews will be conducted on June 13 or calling a Special Meeting.  
 
Selection/Oath of Office: 

• Once interviews have concluded, the Council will deliberate and determine the best qualified 
candidate.  Past practice has been for deliberation to be conducted in open meeting. 

• Once deliberation has concluded, the Council has two options for proceeding with appointment: 
o A motion may be made, the night of the interviews, to appoint an applicant to fill the vacant 

seat with a term ending October 8, 2018, or until the candidate elected at the October 2, 
2018, Regular Election assumes office to serve the remainder of the term. 

  

Page 106 of 108



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 18-062 Page 3 of 3 

o A motion may also be made, the night of the interviews, directing the City Clerk to prepare 
legislation to appoint and begin preparations for appointment at the June 26 Council 
Meeting.  All necessary paperwork will be finalized and the Oath of Office will be performed 
at the June 26 meeting. 

 
Matters for Discussion and Direction:  
 

1. Requirement for applicants to submit a letter of intent, one-page Resume, and/or supplemental 
questions with the application.  Attached are example questions. 

2. Selection of interview questions.  
3. Date of conducting interviews and process. 

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 18-062. 

Page 107 of 108



Below are questions that can be used as supplemental or interview questions.  Please identify which ones best fit 

as a Supplemental (s) or Interview (I). The goal is to have about four questions for the interview. 

 
 
☐ S or ☐ I Tell us about yourself. 

☐ S or ☐ I What is your understanding of the role of a City Council Member? 

☐ S or ☐ I Tell us what has prepared you to be a Council Member. 

☐ S or ☐ I Why are you interested in serving as a Council Member? 

☐ S or ☐ I  Describe your understanding of the time commitment associated with serving on the City Council 

and are you prepared to meet it?  

☐ S or ☐ I What do you feel is the most critical issue facing the City of Palmer today?  

☐ S or ☐ I  What do you think is the most positive attribute of the City?  

☐ S or ☐ I Share with us your assessment of any recent decision of the City Council. 

☐ S or ☐ I Are you prepared to meet the time commitment of being a Council Member? 

• Regular meetings scheduled the second and fourth Tuesday of each month; and 

• Occasional special meetings called from time to time.  Special meetings in the past have 

been held for the purpose of joint meetings with City boards or commissions or budget 

review/planning. 

☐ S or ☐ I  Do you have any scheduled vacations or commitments that would keep you from attending Council 

Meetings between now and October 8th? 

 

 

Page 108 of 108


	Agenda
	AM 18-058 David Dodd Resignation PRCRAB
	AM 18-063 Merry Maxwell Resignation PZC
	2018-0213 Council Minutes Joint PRCRAB
	2018-0313 Council Minutes
	2018-0501 Council Minutes
	Proclamation 2018 Pubic Works Week
	CM Monthly Report April - 2018
	Ord. 18-004 Plastic Bags 
	AM 18-059 Utility Agreement Maple Springs Extension
	AM 18-060 Airport Maint  FAA Grant 2018 TPMP
	AM 18-061 Airport Pavement Maint Project Mgt
	AM 18-062 Accept Hanson Resignation



